
              Municipality of New Lebanon                                                Regular

                                                                                           May 19,              2009


     The Council of the Municipality of New Lebanon, Ohio, met in regular session on Tuesday, May 19, 2009 at 7:30 p.m. with Vice Mayor Ray Arriola presiding.  Present were Municipal Manager/Fire Chief George Markus, Law Director Ronald D. Keener, Police Chief Rick Daulton, Zoning Compliance Officer David Lunsford, Service Department Superintendent Scott Brock, Chief Financial Officer Brenda Etter, Clerk of Council Sandy Wright and several visitors. 
ROLL CALL 

The following members were present at the Call to Order: Raymond Arriola, Linda Green, Chris Landis, Glena Madden, Christopher Sands, and Douglas Smith. Craig Roberts was absent.
INVOCATION

Vice Mayor Ray Arriola gave the invocation.
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Vice Mayor Arriola stated next is the approval of minutes for the May 5, 2009 regular council meeting.  Do I have a motion to accept the May 5, 2009 regular meeting minutes?

Motion by Mrs. Green, second by Mr. Smith to accept May 5, 2009 regular council meeting minutes.

Are there any corrections or changes that need to be made?     
Vice Mayor Arriola stated I have one item and it is probably what I said but I am not sure.  It is on page 14 towards the bottom and it states Vice Mayor Arriola stated George this money would come would be paid; I probably meant this money would be paid by the individuals.
Vice Mayor Arriola stated is there anything else.  All in favor please signify by saying aye. All opposed same sign.
VOICE VOTE ON ABOVE MOTION.  MOTION CARRIED.
OLD BUSINESS
Vice Mayor Arriola stated under old business tonight is the continuation of discussion for potential decorative style street lighting. 
Vice Mayor Arriola stated Mr. Manager.

Municipal Manager Markus stated basically at Council’s direction at the last meeting we did some vendor calls.  We have some approximate costs.  The only way to really nail down the cost for that is to either do a request for proposal or actually do a bid proposal.
From my discussion with the vendors if we were to go with a decorative style street light would run in the vicinity of $175,000.00.  We cannot do that project without an assessment and if you look at $175,000.00 give or take over twenty (20) years on each parcel that would be involved you would be looking at an increase of $81.00 every six (6) months on the property tax.
Ms. Madden stated assessments are only on the first half so it would be $162.00 yearly.

Municipal Manager Markus stated exactly.

Ms. Madden stated that is a lot of money.

Municipal Manager Markus replied yes it is.

Ms. Madden asked why are you only doing 54 parcels?

Municipal Manager Markus replied it is just the Phase II Main Street area that would be impacted.  It would not be a system wide impact.

Ms. Madden replied technically street light assessments can go on any property; if they  drive past that street to get home.

Municipal Manager Markus stated that would be one of many decisions that would have to be made.
Ms. Madden stated it seems expensive.

Municipal Manager Markus stated it is.  The problem with decorative is because they are normally on shorter poles; for example like what we have here in the parking lot.  You end up using in the vicinity of 2 to 2½ for every one of the taller poles.  And it is just based on what height of your decorative pole you use as to whether you are at the short end of that 2 to 2½ or whether you are the longer end so you actually end up with more pole installation.  Another reason this is so expensive would be you have two (2) choices; you can bore under the road and then you don’t have a cord in the road as it settles out or you can trench the road and then of course you get that settling.  So boring is the favored way if you are going to do that type project.  There is a lot of cost there.  It looks very nice but there is a lot of cost there.
Ms. Madden asked once they are installed for the twenty (20) year period then that assessment is going away or are they going to have another lighting assessment for the upkeep of the lights?

Municipal Manager Markus stated that just depends on what happens twenty (20) years from now and that is certainly a potential conclusion as to what might actually happen.

Ms. Madden stated I have never seen a street light assessment go away once it is put on, ever.

Municipal Manager Markus stated and it is likely that it may not but there is the possibility that it may.

Mrs. Green stated my aunt has lived in the same house located in Dayton for fifty-nine (59) years and has yet to have the street light assessment taken off her taxes.

Ms. Madden stated they don’t come off.

Mrs. Green stated it was supposed to be a ten (10) year; then it was to be a twenty (20) year; and then another five (5) year but she has lived there fifty-nine (59) years and it is still….

Municipal Manager Markus stated it is still something for Council to consider.  You don’t need to make a decision on anything tonight unless you know that in fact there are at least four of you that don’t want to do this.

Mrs. Green stated I think it is up to the people.  The street lights are pretty but they are not that pretty.

Municipal Manager Markus stated you are correct; it is up to the people but they need to step up and make their wishes known.  We sent the correspondence out; all of you have a copy of it in your package.  We received eight (8) back out of fifty-four (54).
Ms. Madden stated they did that by electing us, so ultimately it is up to us.  We have to make that decision ultimately.

Municipal Manager Markus stated of the eight (8) we had six (6) yes, one (1) no and one (1) from an out of town property owner who just said “you R nuts”.  You can interpret that however you wish to interpret it; I would push it into the no column.

Mrs. Green stated they would be pretty but not that pretty.  That is a lot of money to ask somebody to pay especially in the times we are having right now with people losing their jobs and the economy.

Municipal Manager Markus stated as another piece of input, the original street levy we proposed last year was 5 mills and this is actually more expensive than the 5 mills would have been had it passed.

Ms. Madden stated because this is just on these fifty-four (54) people, so that makes a big difference now.
Municipal Manager Markus stated so there is a lot for you to think about and if you wish, unless there is four of you right now that know right now that you don’t want to do this, you don’t need to make a decision tonight; you can always wait until the next council meeting if you want to do something more formal.

Mrs. Green stated personally I would like to wait until the next council meeting after we have this workshop and see who shows up and see what they say.

Mr. Sands stated maybe we will get a few more letters back even though the date has already passed.

Municipal Manager Markus stated we may, you never know.  As Council Member Green has just indicated we do have the workshop on Phase II this Thursday at 7:00 p.m. It is an open meeting for everyone.  It has been posted and notices have been sent out so we may get a few more people that come in and certainly we can see what their pleasure is at that time.
Mr. Landis stated I am fine with waiting until the next council meeting.

NEW BUSINESS
Vice Mayor Arriola stated there is no new business on the agenda.  Does anybody have any new business this evening?  Nothing was heard.
Vice Mayor Arriola stated we will move to public comments or questions.  If you have questions or comments please come to the podium and state your name and address for the record.  

PUBLIC COMMENTS OR QUESTIONS

Linda Hager, 209 Mills Place asked when are you going to pick up all of the trees and limbs and get rid of them out there in the field and the woods?
Municipal Manager Markus stated probably sometime the first part of June.  We have a number of projects that have a higher priority than picking up the trees and limbs.  They are on the list but it probably will not be before maybe the second week in June before we will have the opportunity.  We are also planning on doing some pothole repair which certainly has a higher priority than picking up limbs and trees.
Mrs. Hager stated I understand that but you also have kids jumping off those trees over there too.  Two of them fell the other day trying to jump off of them.  I would hate to see the Village get sued for something that should be taken care of.

Municipal Manager Markus stated they can fall on the swing set.  I have seen them do that in the parks.

Mrs. Hager stated I understand that but when they have the trees over there to climb on and jump off of and the limbs that are in the park.  There are a lot of people who walk through there.  I know Derek picked up a bunch the other day and mowed some of that on the side next to our house.  He did not do the other because nothing has been picked up over there from Ike.  It is still over there.  I was just wondering when it was going to get done.  Thank you.
Municipal Manager Markus stated you are welcome.

Vice Mayor Arriola stated thank you Linda.

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF COMMENTS

Vice Mayor Arriola stated we will go to administrative staff comments and we will start with our Police Chief Daulton.  

Police Chief Daulton stated I have one quick comment tonight sir in reference to the bank robbery.  I called Dispatch to get some time frames on it.  Dispatch received the robbery call at 4:04 p.m.; we were dispatched at 4:07 p.m.; we were on the scene at 4:08 p.m.; suspect in custody at 4:13 p.m.
Mrs. Green stated so what was the delay Ricky.  Why did it take so long to catch him? (Laughter)

Vice Mayor Arriola stated that was a great job.

Mrs. Green stated great job.

Vice Mayor Arriola asked does anybody have anything for Police Chief Daulton?  Nothing was heard.
Vice Mayor Arriola stated Fire Chief Markus.

Fire Chief Markus stated I have nothing tonight sir.

Vice Mayor Arriola stated does anyone have anything for Fire Chief Markus.   Nothing was heard. 

Vice Mayor Arriola stated Zoning Compliance Officer David Lunsford.

Zoning Compliance Officer Lunsford stated I have nothing tonight sir.
Vice Mayor Arriola asked does anybody have anything for Zoning Compliance Officer Lunsford?  Nothing was heard.
Vice Mayor Arriola stated Chief Financial Officer Etter.
Chief Financial Officer Etter stated I have nothing tonight.
Vice Mayor Arriola asked does anyone have anything for Brenda?  Nothing was heard.

Vice Mayor Arriola stated Service Department Superintendent Brock.
Service Department Superintendent Brock stated I have nothing this evening sir.

Vice Mayor Arriola stated does anybody have anything for Scott.  Nothing was heard.
Vice Mayor Arriola stated Municipal Manager’s comments.

MUNICIPAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS

Municipal Manager Markus stated our permission to proceed on Phase II has been withdrawn because the State of Ohio has reexamined their forms and decided our form we used last year for the temporary easements was not inclusive enough of some of the language they wished.  We have talked to at lease five or six different people in the various chains of command in Columbus and the different agencies that deal with this type of thing.  We garnered a tremendous amount of sympathy and empathy but that is pretty much the long and the short of it so we have redesigned our form.  We will be sending our form out again.  We don’t have a great deal of them returned yet because we only have ten of the fifty-four that have found their way back to us so we will send out the new form and that will cause us to change our plans for our bid time line too because we were first planning on having a May 26th first bid, a June 2nd second bid, a June 9th third bid, a June 17th bid opening, and a special council meeting on June 25th to award the bid so all of that will be backed up a little bit too.  One of the frustrating issues in working with Columbus is you talk to three people and you get three different answers.  As long as I could get the answer I want I would stop talking right then but it wasn’t the right place in the food chain.  They had a couple of more steps above them.  That has been kind of little surprise for us but we are able to work with it and adjust our time line but it will be different.  Once Columbus again gives us permission to proceed then we will notify you of our new time lines.  I would like the Municipal Law Director to make a couple of comments on that right now, please.
Law Director Ron Keener stated basically to add to what the Municipal Manager has indicated the whole thing is somewhat ridiculous in my eyes and from talking with some of the people in Columbus it is ridiculous in theirs as well.  They are relying on an update of the Ohio Revised Code in the Appropriations Chapter 163 that basically indicates that any time an agency, in this case a municipality has the right to take land by eminent domain that they have the obligation of following all of the requirements in that chapter.  That means to define the land that is being taken, to appraise it, to advise the property owner of that appraisal to make an offer to buy it from the property owner for the appraised amount and go through a series of steps to do that.  That really has not changed anything; it has just made it statutorily required; previously it was procedurally required anyway.  First of all the only thing we are interested in is a temporary easement; we are not taking land per say, we are only acquiring an easement to utilize part of the property owners property during the phase of construction and all of the construction is actually within the right-of-way.  Having said all of that they tend to then forget that one of the other provisions of that same chapter is that nothing in the chapter precludes any person from voluntarily conveying property to the municipality.  It is a bureaucratic whatever, I have to clean up my words, but it is that.  It is ridiculous and as the Manager has said I think the people I talked to both Friday and yesterday understand it.  We get a lot of empathy and a lot of sympathy but we don’t get any help.  The form had to be revised; we have to take another look at it; the difficulty here from a practical standpoint from my eyes is that the stretch of street we are dealing with has so many businesses in it that have absent property owners and it maybe more difficult to get everything that we have.  We have discussed that if we do not have a temporary easement for a particular property we will simply stay within the right-of-way as we go by that property and any benefit that they may have received to their property outside of the right-of-way will simply will not occur. We can do the whole project within the right-of-way; it is a little bit more difficult and it does not leave the adjoining properties as nicely finished, but if that is what we have to do I guess that is what we have to do.
Municipal Manager Markus stated thank you.  

Municipal Manager Markus stated I have just one more quick comment.  As you know the street levy failed to pass by forty-six (46) votes the first time even though we toned it down to three years and cut the millage in half.  I would recommend to council later this year would be to consider putting that back on the November ballot.  The reason for that would be is of course we have Phase I in the ground; we have our intersection project; and we will have Phase II substantially completed by that point in time.  Very clearly if the voters come up with a significant number voting against it then that is a clear message that they are satisfied with the level of street repair in the community and are unwilling to move forward with that level or increasing the level.  If the opposite happens then of course we will have our local match money for Phase III, IV, and V.  This will not stop us from applying for Round 24 Phase III of the Main Street in August, but we will have to go pretty close to one hundred percent in grant and loan.  It is a point grant application and what that means is you get a certain number of points when you do different things.  When you have a mix of funds you get a different number of points and we are going to actually lose a point if we have to go to that high percentage of grant and loan without a higher percentage of local match, which is why we were successful in getting Phase I and why we were successful in getting Phase II.  When we lose that point there will be some consideration given to the fact that it is a phased project and we will already have two phases in the ground when our application is reviewed but whether or not that consideration is going to get us back a point is unknown.  It is a political environment at that point in time and if you are the bigger horse in the corral then the money is probably going to go to you instead of the little pony.  And that would be my estimation but I could very well be wrong and on a hundred percent grant and loan request we might get funded but I don’t look for that to happen, but it is a possibility.  So we will see what happens.
That recommendation will come to you later, but that is substantially what it is going to be.  It will be for the same three year period and it will be at this point in time the same millage and I think that will get us the money that we need.  I still think that it is very practicable and affordable for our community.  When you have to add twenty cents to it to buy a single cigarette and you have to come up with a seventy nine cents to add to it to get a hamburger and we have to come up with another fifty-five cents to buy a copy of the newspaper; I think that is probably as practical and affordable levy you can possibly get.  That will be coming back at you.  

For anybody who doesn’t know yet, the structure in the 300 block of N. Clayton Road is a cell tower.  It is not in New Lebanon; it is not in our incorporated area and we have absolutely nothing to say about it.  It is in Perry Township and they control what they allow on their property and their different zoning districts.  I have received two phone calls on it; it is not exactly a hot button but just so everybody knows.
Mr. Landis stated if the cell tower was to build on our land, let’s say back in the industrial campus on the hill behind the pond would we receive revenue from a cell tower.

Municipal Manager Markus stated sure.  We have towers right now on top of our water tower that we receive revenue for.  They are in three and five year contractual increments.  It is not a substantial amount but I think we get $18,000.00 for the one five year contract and we get $13,000.00 for another five year contract.  It is not a large amount of money but none the less it is still something you are going to take advantage of if you have the opportunity.

Vice Mayor Arriola stated we would not get anything if it were in the industrial park would we.

Municipal Manager Markus stated we would get the property tax.  The personal tangible taxes go to Perry Township; we split policing; there are a variety of things that are identified in the contract for that particular area of the community.
COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS

Vice Mayor Arriola stated we will go to council comments.   We will start this evening with Doug Smith.
Mr. Smith stated I have nothing.
Vice Mayor Arriola stated Linda Green.
Mrs. Green stated I would like to thank everyone for coming.  Scott how is my pond doing?

Service Department Superintendent Brock stated it is wet and it is under control.  (Laughter)
Mrs. Green stated thank you.  Good job Ricky.  

Vice Mayor Arriola stated Council Member Landis and I took a walk out there this evening before the meeting.  It looks good.

Mrs. Green stated it looks good.

Vice Mayor Arriola stated Chris.

Mr. Landis stated I have nothing this evening.

Vice Mayor Arriola stated Glena.
Ms. Madden stated I am glad to be back.  

Vice Mayor Arriola stated we missed you.

Ms. Madden stated it has been a while.  I have a quick question.  You mentioned pothole repair; where, everywhere?  Are we just driving around and throwing it everywhere?

Municipal Manager Markus stated this was actually brought up at the last meeting by Mayor Roberts.  We plan on doing our larger repairs where we had our main breaks first and then after those are accomplished we will move through the community.

Ms. Madden stated like Blosser Street and SR 35 where people have to drive on the sidewalk.

Municipal Manager Markus stated on Blosser Street and SR 35 no.  It is part of Phase II.  There is no point in repairing it knowing we are going to tear it up.

Ms. Madden stated can we just throw some sand in it or something.

Mr. Landis stated good old chips and dust.

Ms. Madden stated I literally drive on the sidewalk when I turn there so I don’t go in the hole and it is not because I normally drive on the sidewalk.  (Laughter)

Vice Mayor Arriola stated Chris Sands.

Mr. Sands stated I have nothing this evening.

VICE MAYOR’S COMMENTS

Vice Mayor Arriola stated I have one thing.  Linda since you are on the Stagecoach Committee it was brought to my attention that they were not having the parade because the street was going to be torn up, which is not true.
Mrs. Green stated that was one of the reasons.  We thought the street was going to be torn up during the Stagecoach Days festivities.  There are four people on Stagecoach Days Committee.  Our chief parade planner retired last year and offered to help but I have no expertise in putting together a parade and neither does any of the other three people so due to a lack of expertise and due to we thought the street was going to be torn up during that time and safety issues we decided not to have the parade this year, however we will have it next year.  It is because I have no clue what to do to do a parade.  It is too short of a time for me to learn how to do it and unless we get more people on Stagecoach Days Committee it is going to be difficult to put together a parade.
Vice Mayor Arriola stated I just wanted to set that straight.

Mrs. Green stated we are looking forward to having a parade next year.

Vice Mayor Arriola stated I have nothing else.

MAYOR’S COMMENTS
Mayor Roberts was absent.
ADJOURNMENT
Vice Mayor Arriola stated I will entertain a motion to adjourn.  

Motion by Mrs. Green, second by Ms. Madden to adjourn the meeting.
ROLL CALL ON ABOVE MOTION:  Mr. Arriola, yes; Mrs. Green, yes; Mr. Landis, yes; Ms. Madden, yes; Mr. Sands, yes; Mr. Smith, yes;  6 yes 0 no 
ALL IN FAVOR.  MOTION CARRIED.
Meeting was adjourned at 7:55 p.m. 
Approved:





_________________________________________





Mayor





Date





_________________________________________________
Clerk of Council



 Date

